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In the 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

__________ DISTRICT OF __________ 

 

 

MAURICE FITZPATRICK, JR., 

 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

 

BRAND ENGAGEMENT NETWORK, INC., 

AFG COMPANIES, INC., DHC 

ACQUISITION, CORP, GENUINE 

LIFETIME, LLC, OCTOBER 3RD 

HOLDINGS, LLC, et. al., 

 

Defendants. 
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Civil Action No. TBD 

 

 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 

 

 

PLAINTIFF’S ORIGINAL COMPLAINT 

 

 

TO THE HONORABLE COURT: 

 

Plaintiff Maurice Fitzpatrick, Jr. (hereinafter, “Plaintiff” or “Fitzpatrick”), appearing pro 

se, respectfully files this Plaintiff’s Original Complaint against Brand Engagement Network, Inc. 

(“BEN”), DHC Acquisition Corp. (“DHCAC”), AFG Companies, Inc. (“AFG”), Genuine 

Lifetime, LLC, October 3rd Holdings, LLC, Lucas Venture Partners, LLC, and other affiliated 

persons and entities for their collective participation in a pattern of racketeering activity, 

retaliation, and deprivation of civil rights, in violation of federal statutes including the Racketeer 

Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1961–1968, and various provisions of 

the Civil Rights Act. 

This action arises from an ongoing and unlawful scheme orchestrated by the above-

named Defendants to retaliate against the Plaintiff for whistleblowing and protected activity, to 

interfere with his lawful rights through abuse of process and litigation fraud, and to conceal fraud 

and other predicate act violations connected to a SPAC transaction and public offering involving 

BEN. Plaintiff brings this action to seek redress, obtain declaratory and injunctive relief, recover 

actual, treble, and punitive damages, and hold all responsible parties accountable under law. 


